

METROPOLITAN GOVERNMENT OF NASHVILLE AND DAVIDSON COUNTY

Planning Department Metro Office Building 800 Second Avenue South Nashville, Tennessee 37201

Minutes

Of the

Metropolitan Planning Commission

Metro Southeast at Genesco Park 1417 Murfreesboro Road

PLANNING COMMISSION:

James McLean, Chairman Phil Ponder, Vice Chairman Stewart Clifton Tonya Jones Victor Tyler Councilmember J.B. Loring Derrick Dalton

Staff Present:

Rick Bernhardt, Executive Director Ann Hammond, Assistant Executive Director David Kleinfelter, Planning Mgr. II Ted Morrissey, Legal Counsel Jason Swaggart, Planner I Bob Leeman, Planner III Trish Brooks, Admin. Svcs. Officer 3 Carrie Logan, Planner I Craig Owensby, Communications Officer Brenda Bernards, Planner III Nedra Jones, Planner II Brian Sexton, Planner I Dennis Corrieri, Planning Tech I

Commission members Absent:

Eileen Beehan, representing Mayor Bill Purcell Ann Nielson Judy Cummings

I. <u>CALL TO ORDER</u>

The meeting was called to order at 4:13 p.m.

Mr. McLean welcomed the newest member to the Commission, Mr. Derrick Dalton.

Mr. McLean also announced that today's meeting would be the last meeting for both Councilmember Loring and Ms. Eileen Beehan. He thanked them for their dedication and service to the Commission.

II. <u>ADOPTION OF AGENDA</u>

Ms. Ann Hammond announced the following: "As information for our audience, if you are not satisfied with a decision made by the Planning Commission today, you may appeal the decision by petitioning for a writ of cert with the Davidson County Chancery or Circuit Court. Your appeal must be filed within 60 days of the date of the entry of the Planning Commission's decision. To ensure that your appeal is filed in a timely manner, and that all procedural requirements have been met, please be advised that you should contact independent legal counsel."

Ms. Hammond also announced there were no corrections or additions to the agenda.

082307Minutes.doc

Mr. Loring moved and Mr. Ponder seconded the motion, which passed unanimously, to adopt the agenda as presented. (6-0)

III. <u>APPROVAL OF AUGUST 9, 2007, MINUTES</u>

Mr. Loring moved and Mr. Ponder seconded the motion, which passed unanimously, to approve the August 9, 2007 minutes as presented. (6-0)

IV. <u>RECOGNITION OF COUNCILMEMBERS</u>

There were no councilmembers present at the meeting.

V. <u>PUBLIC HEARING: ITEMS REQUESTED TO BE DEFERRED OR</u> WITHDRAWN

2. 2007S-176G-12 Greenwood Subdivision -- a request for final plat approval to close Green Trails Drive right-of-way and create common area for properties located at 2320 and 2328 Green Trails Court, on the north side of Green Trails Court (0.34 acres), zoned R10 and located within a Planned Unit Development

- deferred indefinitely at the request of the applicant

Mr. Ponder moved and Mr. Loring seconded the motion, which passed unanimously, to approve the Deferred and Withdrawn items. (6-0)

Mr. Clifton arrived at 4:16 p.m.

VI. PUBLIC HEARING: CONSENT AGENDA

PREVIOUSLY DEFERRED ITEMS AND ITEMS ON PUBLIC HEARING

1.	2007S-107U-12	Caldwell Country Estates, Sec. 1, Resub. Lot 120 - Request for final plat approval to create 2 lots on property located at 243 Blackman Road.	- Approve, including an exception to lot comparability and variances Section 3-42.a and section 3-4.2.f of the Subdivision Regulations.
CON 4.	NCEPT PLANS 2007S-206U-07	A request for concept plan approval to create 2 lots on property located at 292 33rd Avenue North, approximately 135 feet south of Nevada Avenue (0.28 acres), zoned RS5	- Approve w/ conditions.
FIN . 5.	AL PLATS 2007S-197U-10	Boyd Home Tract Resubdivision Lots 120-129 - Request for final plat approval to create 4 lots in a unified plat of subdivision for properties located at 1809, 1811, 1813, and 1817 Hayes Street, 112 19th Avenue North, 1808, 1812, and 1820 West End Avenue.	- Approve w/ conditions.
6.	2007S-216G-03	Cherry Grove Ph. 1b, Resub. Lots 25, 27, 28, 29 - Request for final plat approval to modify lot lines between properties located at 4030 Whites Creek Pike, 532 Cherry Grove Lane, 605, 609, and 613 Cherry Grove Point.	- Approve.

7. 2007S-224G-03 Rolston-Blackman Land Resub., 1st Rev. - Request for final plat approval to create 2 lots on property located at 3878 Stevens Lane. - Approve w/ conditions.

REVISIONS AND FINAL SITE PLANS

8.	123-83-U-13	Canyon Ridge, Phases 3-6 (Fomerly Starwood Properties Five, L.P. Property) - Request to revise the preliminary plan for a portion of a Planned Unit Development located at Rural Hill Road (unnumbered), to permit the development of 316 townhome units, replacing 338 dwelling units comprised of 62 townhome units, and 276 apartment units	- Approve w/conditions.
9.	2005P-017G-06	Shoppes on the Harpeth, Lot 3 - Request to revise the preliminary and for final approval for a portion of a Planned Unit Development located at 8100 Highway 100, to permit the development of 12,150 square feet comprised of 8,500 square feet of office and 3,650 square feet of retail uses.	- Approve w/ conditions.
10.	2005UD-003G-12	Carothers Crossing, Delegation of Architectural Review - Request to delegate the responsibility for architectural design review within the Urban Design Overlay district to the Carothers Crossing Town Architect and Design Review Committee, located at Kidd Road (unnumbered) Battle Road (unnumbered), 7140, 7176, 7107, 7211, and 7244 Carothers Road, and Carothers Road (unnumbered), (599 acres total), for the review of a maximum of 3,000 residential units and 200,000 square feet of commercial space	- Approve w/conditions

OTHER BUSINESS

12. Acquisition of Digital Orthoimagery for mapping purposes in Davidson County - Approve.

Mr. Clifton moved and Mr. Loring seconded the motion, which passed unanimously to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. (7-0)

VII. <u>PUBLIC HEARING: PREVIOUSLY DEFERRED ITEMS AND ITEMS ON</u> <u>PUBLIC HEARING</u>

FINAL PLATS

1. 2007S-107U-12 Caldwell Country Estates, Sec. 1, Resub. Lot 120 Map 147-06, Parcel 188 Subarea 12 (2004) Council Distict 26 - Greg Adkins

A request for final plat approval to create 2 lots on property located at 243 Blackman Road, approximately 240 feet east of Darlington Road (1.06 acres), zoned RS20, requested by Jennifer C. Nelson, owner, Mark Devendorf, surveyor.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve, including an exception to lot comparability and variances Section 3-4.2.a and Section 3-4.2.f of the Subdivision Regulations.

APPLICANT REQUEST - A request for final plat approval to create 2 single-family lots on property located at 243 Blackman Road, approximately 240 feet east of Darlington Road (1.06 acres), zoned Single-Family Residential

(RS20).

ZONING

RS20 District - <u>RS20</u> requires a minimum 20,000 square foot lot and is intended for single-family dwellings at a density of 1.85 dwelling units per acre.

PLAN DETAILS -This subdivision proposes to create 2 single-family lots from one lot. Both lots are accessed via a joint access driveway. There is no other access from Blackman Road.

Lot Comparability - Section 3-5 of the Subdivision Regulations states that new lots in areas that are predominantly developed are to be generally in keeping with the lot frontage and lot size of the existing surrounding lots.

	Lot Comparability Analysis				
Street:	Requirements:				
	Minimum	Minimum			
	lot size	lot frontage			
	(sq.ft):	(linear ft.):			
Blackman Road	9,847	83.0			

Lot comparability analysis was performed and yielded the following information:

As proposed, the two new lots have the following areas and street frontages:

- Lot 1: 21,944 Sq. Ft., (0.5 Acres), with 67.67 ft. of frontage
- Lot 2: 23,729 Sq. Ft., (0.54 Acres), with 102 ft. of frontage

Lot 1 does not pass for frontage.

Lot Comparability Exception - A lot comparability exception can be granted if the lot does not meet the minimum requirements of the lot comparability analysis (is smaller in lot frontage and/or size) if the new lots would be consistent with the General Plan. The Planning Commission has discretion whether or not to grant a lot comparability exception.

The proposed lots <u>could</u> meet **one** of the qualifying criteria of the exception to lot comparability:

1. The proposed lots are consistent with the adopted land use policy that applies to the property. The lots are located in the Residential Low Medium Density land use policy. RLM policy is intended to accommodate residential development within a density range of two to four dwelling units per acre. The predominant development type is single-family homes, although some townhomes and other forms of attached housing may be appropriate.

Section 3-4.2.a -A variance to Section 3-4.2.a of the Subdivision Regulations is required for the irregular lot lines. There are a number of irregular lot lines in the area. In this case, the new lot line mimics the existing lot line on the west side of the lot.

Section 3-4.2.f -Lot 1 has a frontage of 67.67 feet and a depth of approximately 310 feet. The frontage of Lot 1 is only 21.8% of the average lot depth. Section 3-4.2.f of the Subdivision Regulations requires that lot frontage be not less than 25% of the average lot depth, also known as the 4:1 rule. Both lots are intersected by a drainage ditch with a large water quality buffer, so the usable area of the lots is much smaller than the total lot area.

Staff Recommendation -Staff recommends granting an exception to lot comparability since the proposed lot line adjustment is consistent with the land use policy. In addition, staff recommends granting variances to Section 3-4.2.a and Section 3-4.2.f because the new lots are consistent with the development pattern in the area.

PUBLIC WORKS RECOMMENDATION - No Exceptions Taken STORMWATER RECOMMENDATION - Approved

Approved, including an exception to lot comparability and variances Section 3-4.2a and Section 3-4.2.f of the

Subdivision Regulations, (7-0) Consent Agenda

Resolution No. BL2007-289

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission that 2007S-107U-12 is **APPROVED**, including an exception to lot comparability and variances Section 3-4.2.a and Section 3-4.2.f of the Subdivision Regulations. (7-0)"

2007S-176G-12 Greenwood Subdivision, Resubdivision Lots 18 and 19 Map 162-13-0-A, Parcels 018, 019 Subarea 12 (2004) Council District 31 - Parker Toler

A request for final plat approval to close Green Trails Drive right-of-way and create common area for properties located at 2320 and 2328 Green Trails Court, on the north side of Green Trails Court (0.34 acres), zoned R10 and located within a Planned Unit Development, requested by various owners, Delle Land Surveying, surveyor. **STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Disapprove.**

The Metropolitan Planning Commission DEFERRED Final Plat 2007S-176G-12 indefinitely at the request of the applicant. (7-0)

VIII. CONCEPT PLANS

3. 2007S-172U-13

2.

Clairmont Village Map163-00, Parcel 002 Subarea 13 (2003) Council District 28 – Buck Dozier

A request for concept plan approval to create 45 lots on property located at Moss Road (unnumbered), approximately 1,440 feet east of Una Antioch Pike (9.43 acres) zoned RS7.5, requested by Michael T. and Sarah Duke, owners, Jim Lukens, surveyor.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve with conditions

APPLICANT REQUEST - Concept Plan

A request for concept plan approval to create 45 single-family lots on property located at Moss Road (9.43 acres) approximately 1,440 feet east of Una-Antioch Pike, zoned Single-Family Residential (RS7.5).

ZONING

RS7.5 District - <u>RS7.5</u> requires a minimum 7,500 square foot lot and is intended for single-family dwellings at a density of 4.94 dwelling units per acre.

PLAN DETAILS

Cluster Lot - The plan proposes 45 single-family residential lots in Clairmont Village, a cluster lot development. The cluster lot option allows the applicant to reduce minimum lot sizes two base zone districts from the base zone classification of RS7.5 (minimum 7,500 sq. ft. lots) to RS3.75 (minimum 3,750 sq. ft. lots) if the plan meets all the requirements of the cluster lot provisions of the Metro Code. The proposed lots range in size from 4,450 square feet to 7,178 square feet.

Open Space - Pursuant to Section 17.12.090(D) of the Metro Zoning Ordinance, cluster lot subdivisions require a minimum of 15% open space per phase. The plan identifies 2.4 acres of common open space (20 % of the site).

Access/Street Connectivity - The development is accessible by two public roads from Moss Road. The two roads connect to a public road to the north that allows for future connections to the east and west of the site.

Sidewalks - Sidewalks are proposed within the development and along Moss Road.

Analysis - The purpose of the cluster lot option is to provide for flexibility of design, the creation of common open space, the preservation of natural features or unique or significant vegetation (Section 17.12.090). In exchange for alternative lot sizes, the development must include "common open space" that provides "use and enjoyment" value to the residents.

The cluster lot option provides design flexibility when natural features and topography restrict development on the site. The topographic constraints at this location present serious challenges to development and limit the design alternatives. The current layout attempts to get the maximum number of lots possible. It is important to note that the cluster lot option cannot guarantee that the maximum allowable density can be achieved on challenging terrain such as this site. With minor changes to the current layout, it is possible for this development to meet the intent of the cluster lot option.

While the open space shown on the plan exceeds the minimum percent of requirements for cluster lot developments, a significant portion of the common space is located in an area that could be misconstrued as private space. The largest area identified as common space is not designed to be "public space" or open space that would be obvious to the residents as space that is to be shared. A reduction in the number of lots, particularly eliminating Lots 34 through 36 and re-configuring Lot 37 to resemble Lot 33 would result in open space that would appear less private and be more available for the shared enjoyment of the residents. Lots 33 and 37 must include homes that address both streets.

Lots 23, 24 and 45 should also incorporate house plans that are oriented to address both Moss Road and the public streets within the development.

Staff Recommendation - Staff recommends disapproval unless stormwater issues have been satisfied and revised plans addressing all the conditions listed above are submitted prior to the Planning Commission meeting.

PUBLIC WORKS RECOMMENDATION

- 1. Construct "T-Type" intersections located at lots 12, 13, 33 and common open space. The revised site layout plan proposes roadway intersecting into horizontal and vertical curves.
- 2. The developer's construction drawings shall comply with the design regulations established by the Department of Public Works. Final design may vary based on field conditions.
- 3. Developer to make road improvements to Moss Road along property frontage, as determined by the Department of Public Works.

STORMWATER RECOMMENDATION

1. Show and label a Water Quality concept for lots 7-12.

CONDITIONS

- 1. Prior to the application for a final plat, a revised concept plan must be submitted to reflect the removal of Lots 34 through 36, and the reorientation of Lot 37 to resemble Lot 33.
- 2. Prior to the application for a final plat, a note shall be added to the revised concept plan that states Lots 23, 24 33, 37 and 45 will incorporate house plans that are oriented to address both streets at the corner.
- 3. Street connections to the north and to the east shall be required.
- 4. All changes requested by Metro Public Works and Stormwater shall be required.
- 5. Prior to the issuance of any permits, confirmation of preliminary approval of this proposal shall be forwarded to the Planning Commission by the Traffic Engineering Sections of the Metropolitan Department of Public Works for all improvements within public rights of way. All Public Works conditions must be satisfied.

- 6. Within residential developments, all utilities are to be underground. The utility providing the service is to approve the design and construction. The developer is to coordinate the location of all underground utilities. Street lighting is required in the Urban Services district.
- 7. Pursuant to 2-3.4.e of the Metro Subdivision Regulations, if this application receives conditional approval from the Planning Commission, that approval shall expire unless revised plans showing the conditions on the face of the plans are submitted prior to any application for a final plat, and in no event more than 30 days after the effective date of the Commission's conditional approval vote.
- 8. Within 120 days of Planning Commission approval of this concept plan, and in any event prior to any additional development applications for this property, including submission of a final plat, the applicant shall provide the Planning Department with a final corrected copy of the concept plan for filing and recording with the Davidson County Register of Deeds.
- 9. Prior to the recording of the final plat, all conditions established by Stormwater Water must be met.

Ms. Nedra Jones presented and stated that staff is recommending approval with conditions.

Mr. Danny Webb, 4124 Highlander Court, spoke in opposition to the proposal.

Ms. Melissa Sparks, 4049 Moss Road, spoke in opposition to the proposal.

Ms. Evelyn Buchanan, 4044 Moss Road, spoke in opposition to the proposal.

Mr. Jim Lukens, Engineer, spoke in favor of the proposal.

Mr. Ponder requested clarification regarding the sidewalks included in the proposal.

Ms. Nedra Jones clarified the placement of sidewalks contained in the proposal.

Ms. Jones confirmed that the plan used in the staff's presentation was a revised version from the original submission.

Mr. Clifton requested clarification regarding staff's recommendation in relation to the stormwater issues originally mentioned in the proposal.

Ms. Nedra Jones explained that the applicant has met the requirements of Metro Stormwater.

Mr. Clifton acknowledged the concerns of the residents, however, mentioned the property was already zoned and the requirements have been met by the applicant.

Mr. Tyler requested additional information on the improvements requested by the Public Works Department.

Mr. Jonathan Honeycutt, Public Works, explained the improvements to the Commission.

Mr. Bernhardt offered that the Commission should base their recommendation on whether the property is being developed in accordance to the subdivision regulations.

Ms. Jones moved and Mr. Ponder seconded the motion, which passed unanimously, to approve with conditions Concept Plan 2007S-172U-13. (7-0)

Resolution No. BL2007-290

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission that 2007S-172U-13 is **APPROVED WITH CONDITIONS. (7-0)**

Conditions of Approval:

1. Prior to the application for a final plat, a revised concept plan must be submitted to reflect the removal of Lots 34 through 36, and the reorientation of Lot 37 to resemble Lot 33.

- 2. Prior to the application for a final plat, a note shall be added to the revised concept plan that states Lots 23, 24 33, 37 and 45 will incorporate house plans that are oriented to address both streets at the corner.
- 3. Street connections to the north and to the east shall be required.
- 4. All changes requested by Metro Public Works and Stormwater shall be required.
- 5. Prior to the issuance of any permits, confirmation of preliminary approval of this proposal shall be forwarded to the Planning Commission by the Traffic Engineering Sections of the Metropolitan Department of Public Works for all improvements within public rights of way. All Public Works conditions must be satisfied.
- 6. Within residential developments, all utilities are to be underground. The utility providing the service is to approve the design and construction. The developer is to coordinate the location of all underground utilities. Street lighting is required in the Urban Services district.
- 7. Pursuant to 2-3.4.e of the Metro Subdivision Regulations, if this application receives conditional approval from the Planning Commission, that approval shall expire unless revised plans showing the conditions on the face of the plans are submitted prior to any application for a final plat, and in no event more than 30 days after the effective date of the Commission's conditional approval vote.
- 8. Within 120 days of Planning Commission approval of this concept plan, and in any event prior to any additional development applications for this property, including submission of a final plat, the applicant shall provide the Planning Department with a final corrected copy of the concept plan for filing and recording with the Davidson County Register of Deeds.
- 9. Prior to the recording of the final plat, all conditions established by Stormwater Water must be met."

4. 2007S-206U-07

Justin Rogers Subdivision Map 092-13, Parcel 402 Subarea 7 (2000) Council District 24 - John Summers

A request for concept plan approval to create 2 lots on property located at 292 33rd Avenue North, approximately 135 feet south of Nevada Avenue (0.28 acres), zoned RS5, requested by Justin Rogers and Renee Leymon, owners, The Schneider Corporation, surveyor.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve with condition.

APPLICANT REQUEST - Concept Plan

A request for concept plan approval to create 2 lots on property located at 292 33rd Avenue North, approximately 135 feet south of Nevada Avenue (0.28 acres), zoned RS5.

ZONING

RS5 District - <u>RS5</u> requires a minimum 5,000 square foot lot and is intended for single-family dwellings at a density of 7.41 dwelling units per acre.

PLAN DETAILS - The concept plan proposes two lots of 5,673 sq. ft. and 5,744 sq. ft. on 33rd Avenue North. While a two lot subdivision can be approved administratively, 33rd Avenue is a substandard street at this property and will need to be improved to meet Public Works standards. Due to the need to bring the street up to current standards, this subdivision in classified as a major subdivision and requires Planning Commission approval.

This portion of 33rd Avenue North is a dead-end street. As the dead-end street will be more than 150 feet, the applicant is working with Public Works and the Fire Marshal to address access for emergency and service vehicles. In addition, the new houses will include a fire sprinkler system.

Staff Recommendation - Staff recommends approval with conditions.

PUBLIC WORKS RECOMMENDATION - Roadway improvements to be constructed per the recommendation of the Department of Public Works.

STORMWATER RECOMMENDATION - Show and label the existing topography.

FIRE MARSHAL ECOMMENDATION

- 1. Show and label the fire hydrant on 33rd Avenue North.
- 2. Work with the Fire Marshal and Public Works to address access for emergency and service vehicles.
- 3. Include a fire sprinkler system in the new houses.

WATER SERVICES RECOMMENDATION - Add the following plat note:

1. The owner of Lot 2 is responsible for the installation, operation and maintenance of the private sanitary service line which is located in a 10 foot private sanitary service line easement crossing a portion of Lot 1 as shown on this plat.

CONDITIONS

- 1. The roadway improvements shall be constructed as required by the Public Works Department.
- 2. Show and label the existing topography.
- 3. The requirements of the Metropolitan Fire Marshal's Office for emergency vehicle access and adequate water supply for fire protection must be met.
- 4. Add the plat note as required by Metro Water Services.
- 5. Pursuant to 2-3.4.e of the Metro Subdivision Regulations, if this application receives conditional approval from the Planning Commission, that approval shall expire unless revised plans showing the conditions on the face of the plans are submitted prior to any application for a final plat, and in no event more than 30 days after the effective date of the Commission's conditional approval vote.

Approved with conditions, (7-0) Consent Agenda

Resolution No. BL2007-291

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission that 2007S-206U-07 is **APPROVED WITH CONDITIONS. (7-0)**

Conditions of Approval:

- 1. The roadway improvements shall be constructed as required by the Public Works Department.
- 2. Show and label the existing topography.
- 3. The requirements of the Metropolitan Fire Marshal's Office for emergency vehicle access and adequate water supply for fire protection must be met.
- 4. Add the plat note as required by Metro Water Services.
- 5. Pursuant to 2-3.4.e of the Metro Subdivision Regulations, if this application receives conditional approval from the Planning Commission, that approval shall expire unless revised plans showing the conditions on the face of the plans are submitted prior to any application for a final plat, and in no event more than 30 days after the effective date of the Commission's conditional approval vote."

IX. <u>FINAL PLATS</u>

5. 2007S-197U-10

Boyd Home Tract Resubdivision Lots 120-129 Map092-12, Parcels 473, 474, 475, 476 Map 092-16, Parcels 150, 151, 153, 154 Subarea 10 (2005) Council District **19** - Ludye N. Wallace

A request for final plat approval to create 4 lots in a unified plat of subdivision for properties located at 1809, 1811, 1813, and 1817 Hayes Street, 112 19th Avenue North, 1808, 1812, and 1820 West End Avenue, at the northeast corner of 19th Avenue South and West End Avenue (1.61 acres), zoned CF, requested by 1808 West End Owner, LLC, owners, Volunteer Land Surveying Services. **STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve with conditions.**

APPLICANT REQUEST - A request for final plat approval to create four lots in a unified plat of subdivision for properties located at 1809, 1811, 1813, and 1817 Hayes Street, 112 19th Avenue North, 1808, 1812, and 1820 West End Avenue, at the northeast corner of 19th Avenue South and West End Avenue (1.61 acres), zoned Core Frame (CF).

ZONING

CF District - <u>Core Frame</u> is intended for a wide range of parking and commercial service support uses for the Central Business District.

PLAN DETAILS - This subdivision proposes to create four lots, with two lots on each side of an alley, in a Unified Plat of Subdivision. Unified Plats of Subdivision allow floor area ratio, impervious surface ratio, and other bulk standards and parking requirements to be shared across the entire subdivision, instead of being applied to each individual lot. In this case, the aggregate floor area ratio for Lots 3 and 4 is being transferred to Lots 1 and 2, which border 19th Avenue. Lot 2 will be allowed to build to the property line along West End Avenue, but will be required to step back 20 feet when the building reaches a height of approximately 30-40 feet.

Staff Recommendation - Staff recommends approval with conditions.

PUBLIC WORKS RECOMMENDATION - No Exceptions Taken

STORMWATER RECOMMENDATION - Approved

CONDITIONS Prior to recording the final plat, the following revisions need to be made:

- 1. Erase apostrophe from 19th Ave. South
- 2. Revise Special Note 4 to state "With regard to Lot 2 only."
- 3. Make required changes on NES approved plat or submit a new NES approved plat.
- 4. Add parcel numbers. Lot 1 is parcel 527, Lot 2 is parcel 433, Lot 3 is parcel 528, and Lot 4 is parcel 434.

Approved with conditions, (7-0) Consent Agenda

Resolution No. BL2007-292

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission that 2007S-197U-10 is **APPROVED WITH CONDITIONS. (7-0)**

Conditions of Approval:

- 1. Erase apostrophe from 19th Ave. South
- 2. Revise Special Note 4 to state "With regard to Lot 2 only."
- 3. Make required changes on NES approved plat or submit a new NES approved plat.
- 4. Add parcel numbers. Lot 1 is parcel 527, Lot 2 is parcel 433, Lot 3 is parcel 528, and Lot 4 is parcel 434."

6. 2007S-216G-03

Cherry Grove Ph. 1b, Resub. Lots 25, 27, 28, 29 Map049-00, Part of Parcel 042 Map 049-01-0-B, Parcels 018, 020, 021, 022 Subarea 3 (2003) Council District **3** - Walter Hunt

A request for final plat approval to modify lot lines between properties located at 4030 Whites Creek Pike, 532 Cherry Grove Lane, 605, 609, and 613 Cherry Grove Point, at the southwest corner of Cherry Grove Point and Cherry Grove Lane (1.62 acres), zoned R15, requested by William H. Thompson, Jr. and Jean O. Thompson, David and Gladies Herron, and David O. Huff, Trustee, owners, Walter Davidson & Associates, surveyor. **STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve.**

APPLICANT REQUEST - A request for final plat approval to modify lot lines between properties located at 4030 Whites Creek Pike, 532 Cherry Grove Lane, 605, 609, and 613 Cherry Grove Point, at the southwest corner of Cherry Grove Point and Cherry Grove Lane (1.62 acres), zoned One and Two-Family Residential (R15).

ZONING

R15 District - <u>R15</u> requires a minimum 15,000 square foot lot and is intended for single-family dwellings and duplexes at an overall density of 3.09 dwelling units per acre including 25% duplex lots.

PLAN DETAILS - This subdivision proposes to take approximately 9,600 square feet from a 58.45 acres parcel to the west and add it to Lots 25, 27, 28, and 29. This addition extends the four lots approximately 25 feet in order to provide for a better building envelope.

The new lots will be:

Lot 25 = 15,014 sq. ft. (.34 acres) Lot 27 = 16,629 sq. ft. (.38 acres) Lot 28 = 19,580 sq. ft. (.45 acres) Lot 29 = 19,358 sq. ft. (.44 acres)

Staff Recommendation - Staff recommends approval.

PUBLIC WORKS RECOMMENDATION - No Exception Taken

STORMWATER RECOMMENDATION - Approved

WATER SERVICES RECOMMENDATION - Show water.

The plat has been revised to satisfy this comment. Water lines have been shown on the revised plat.

Approved, (7-0) Consent Agenda

Resolution No. BL2007-293

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission that 2007S-216G-03 is APPROVED. (7-0)"

7. 2007S-224G-03

Rolston-Blackman Land Resub., 1st Rev. Map048-00, Parcel 102 Subarea 3 (2003) Council District 1 - Brenda Gilmore

A request for final plat approval to create 2 lots on property located at 3878 Stevens Lane, approximately 2,240 feet west of Homeland Drive (2.11 acres), zoned RS40, requested by Emje Rolston, owner, Tommy Walker, surveyor.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve with condition.

APPLICANT REQUEST - Final Plat Approval

A request for final plat approval to create 2 lots and remove the reserve status from Lot 1-A on property located at 3878 Stevens Lane, west of Homeland Drive (2.11 acres), zoned Single-Family Residential (RS40).

ZONING

RS40 - <u>RS40</u> requires a minimum 40,000 square foot lot and is intended for single-family dwellings at a density of .93 dwelling units per acre.

PLAN DETAILS - This final plat proposes to create two lots and remove the reserve status from Lot 1-A. The gross acreage for the site totals 2.11 acres. Lot 1 would consist of 40,867 square feet and Lot 2 would consist of 50,548 square feet. The site contains slopes of 25 % or greater. Lot 1 must have a building envelope outside of the areas with 25% slope or greater, and shall be designated as a critical lot.

History - The plat was originally created in 1979 and included four lots (Lots 1B and 2A, and Lots 1A and 2B). All four lots were designated as reserve parcels, but Lots1B and 2A were labeled as reserved until approval was granted by the Metropolitan Planning Commission and the Metropolitan Health Department appeals board. Lots 1A and 2B were labeled as reserved parcels and included a note that they were not building sites.

Section 2-9-1.b. of the Subdivision Regulations states that reserve parcels may be converted to building sites by submittal of a plat drawing as described in Section 2-5. Removal of the reserve status shall require Planning Commission approval except when the parcel is in reserve pending an action by a public utility to provide service availability as noted on the face of the approved subdivision plat that created the reserve parcel. In this case, removal of the reserved status for lost 1A and 2B must be approved by the Planning Commission.

Staff Recommendation - Staff recommends approval with conditions.

PUBLIC WORKS RECOMMENDATION - No Exception Taken

STORMWATER RECOMMENDATION-Approved

CONDITIONS

- 1. Prior to recordation, Lot 1 must be designated as a critical lot on the final plat.
- 2. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, a critical lot plan must be submitted and approved for Lot 1. The building envelope must be located outside of the areas with 25% slope or greater.

Approved with conditions, (7-0) Consent Agenda

Resolution No. BL2007-294

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission that 2007S-224G-03 is **APPROVED WITH CONDITIONS. (7-0)**

Conditions of Approval:

- 1. Prior to recordation, Lot 1 must be designated as a critical lot on the final plat.
- 2. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, a critical lot plan must be submitted and approved for Lot 1. The building envelope must be located outside of the areas with 25% slope or greater."

X. <u>REVISIONS AND FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLANS</u>

8. 123-83-U-13

Canyon Ridge, Phases 3-6 (Fomerly Starwood Properties Five, L.P. Property) Map 149-00, Parcel 048 Subarea 13 (2003) Council District **33** -Robert Duvall A request to revise the preliminary plan for a portion of a Planned Unit Development located at Rural Hill Road (unnumbered), at the end of Rice Road, (39.01 acres), to permit the development of 316 townhome units, replacing 338 dwelling units comprised of 62 townhome units, and 276 apartment units, zoned R10 and located within a Planned Unit Development, requested by Wamble & Associates, applicant, for Starwood Properties Five, L.P., owner.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Disapprove unless revised plans are submitted and approved by Stormwater prior to the Planning Commission meeting.

APPLICANT REQUEST - Revise Preliminary

A request to revise the preliminary plan for a portion of a Planned Unit Development located at Rural Hill Road (unnumbered), at the end of Rice Road, (39.01 acres), to permit the development of 316 townhome units, replacing 338 dwelling units comprised 62 townhome units, and 276 apartment units, zoned one and two family residential (R10).

PLAN DETAILS - This is a request to revise Phases 3, 4, 5, and 6 of the preliminary PUD. Each phase, as proposed, consists of townhomes units. A total of 316 townhome units are planned for the entire development with 162 units in Phase 3, 82 units in Phase 4, 62 units in Phase 5, and 10 units in Phase 6. This portion of the PUD will complete the previously approved PUD.

Access - This PUD is in an area that is largely developed and will be accessible from Edge-O-Lake and Pebble Court, which are both existing collector streets. An extension of the local street, Rice Road is proposed and will provide a third access to the development from the east. The individual units are accessible by private drives. An existing sidewalk network exists along the western side of Edge-O-lake Drive and the north side of Pebble Court. Additional sidewalks are planned within each phase of the new development.

Preliminary PUD - The preliminary PUD was originally approved in 1983, and was revised in August 1998. The revised PUD was approved for single-family and multi-family residential uses within five phases. Phases 1 and 2 consisted of 54 single-family dwelling units and received final approval in November 1998. Phase 3 included 62 townhouse units, and Phases 4 and 5 had a total of 276 apartment units.

Staff Recommendation - Staff is recommending disapproval unless revised plans are submitted and approved by Stormwater prior to the Planning Commission meeting. If revised plans are submitted and approved by Stormwater, then Planning staff recommends approval with conditions.

PUBLIC WORKS RECOMMENDATION

- 1. The developer's construction drawings shall comply with the design regulations established by the Department of Public Works. Final design may vary based on field conditions.
- 2. Prior to final approval and permit issuance, an updated TIS is required to identify off-site roadway improvements required to mitigate the impact of this development.
- 3. Coordinate solid waste collection and disposal with the Department of Public Works, additional dumpster pads may be required. Recycling collection facilities are encouraged.
- 4. Prior to the issuance of building permits, the developer shall complete all outstanding Punch List items or bond any required improvements with the recording of the plat that dedicates Edge O Lake Drive, Rice Road, and Pebble Creek Drive right of way.
- 5. This development appears to provide near minimum parking, guest parking distributed throughout the development is recommended to maintain safe drive aisles and reduce spillover onto the public streets.
- 6. New public sidewalks are to be located within the public right of way with a minimum four foot grass strip / furnishing area.
- 7. Adequate sight distance as per AASHTO is required at all access drives onto public roads.

STORMWATER RECOMMENDATION

- 1. GIS indicated a possible stream without appropriate buffers (located near the park). Either provide buffer or provide hydraulic determination showing that the drainage way is not a stream.
- 2. A 30' buffer was observed for the stream. If the drainage basin is over 100 acres, then a 2 zone buffer would be required. Show a 2-zoned buffer or provide a drainage map showing the basin is less than 100 acres.
- 3. An irregular stream buffer disturbance was observed. Show perpendicular stream crossings or provide an approved appeal.

CONDITIONS

- 1. Prior to the approval of the final PUD, dedicate right-of-way at the end of Edge-O-Lake Drive to the property boundary line and at the southern most corner of the site adjacent to parcel 49 on tax map 149 for future connection as shown in the Major Street and Collector Plan.
- 2. Prior to or in conjunction with the submittal of the final site plan, the applicant shall provide plans for a 4 foot tall stone or masonry wall, or ornamental privacy fence to adequately screen the parking area abutting the north boundary line within Phase 5.
- 3. Prior to the approval of the final site plan, the plan shall be revised to provide a "B" landscape buffer along the north and west boundary lines within Phase 3.
- 4. All changes requested by Metro Public Works and Stormwater shall be required.
- 5. Prior to the issuance of any permits, confirmation of preliminary approval of this proposal shall be forwarded to the Planning Commission by the Stormwater Management division of Water Services.
- 6. Prior to the issuance of any permits, confirmation of preliminary approval of this proposal shall be forwarded to the Planning Commission by the Traffic Engineering Sections of the Metropolitan Department of Public Works for all improvements within public rights of way.
- 7. Subsequent to enactment of this planned unit development overlay district by the Metropolitan Council, and prior to any consideration by the Metropolitan Planning Commission for final site development plan approval, a paper print of the final boundary plat for all property within the overlay district must be submitted, complete with owners signatures, to the Planning Commission staff for review.
- 8. This approval does not include any signs. Business accessory or development signs in commercial or industrial planned unit developments must be approved by the Metropolitan Department of Codes Administration except in specific instances when the Metropolitan Council directs the Metropolitan Planning Commission to approve such signs.
- 9. The requirements of the Metropolitan Fire Marshal's Office for emergency vehicle access and adequate water supply for fire protection must be met prior to the issuance of any building permits. If any cul-de-sac is required to be larger than the dimensions specified by the Metropolitan Subdivision Regulations, such cul-de-sac must include a landscaped median in the middle of the turn-around, including trees. The required turnaround may be up to 100 feet diameter.

Approved with conditions, (7-0) Consent Agenda

Resolution No. BL2007-295

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission that 123-83-U-13 is **APPROVED WITH CONDITIONS. (7-0)**

Conditions of Approval:

1. Prior to the approval of the final PUD, dedicate right-of-way at the end of Edge-O-Lake Drive to the property boundary line and at the southern most corner of the site adjacent to parcel 49 on tax map 149 for future connection as shown in the Major Street and Collector Plan.

- 2. Prior to or in conjunction with the submittal of the final site plan, the applicant shall provide plans for a 4 foot tall stone or masonry wall, or ornamental privacy fence to adequately screen the parking area abutting the north boundary line within Phase 5.
- 3. Prior to the approval of the final site plan, the plan shall be revised to provide a "B" landscape buffer along the north and west boundary lines within Phase 3.
- 4. All changes requested by Metro Public Works and Stormwater shall be required.
- 5. Prior to the issuance of any permits, confirmation of preliminary approval of this proposal shall be forwarded to the Planning Commission by the Stormwater Management division of Water Services.
- 6. Prior to the issuance of any permits, confirmation of preliminary approval of this proposal shall be forwarded to the Planning Commission by the Traffic Engineering Sections of the Metropolitan Department of Public Works for all improvements within public rights of way.
- 7. Subsequent to enactment of this planned unit development overlay district by the Metropolitan Council, and prior to any consideration by the Metropolitan Planning Commission for final site development plan approval, a paper print of the final boundary plat for all property within the overlay district must be submitted, complete with owners signatures, to the Planning Commission staff for review.
- 8. This approval does not include any signs. Business accessory or development signs in commercial or industrial planned unit developments must be approved by the Metropolitan Department of Codes Administration except in specific instances when the Metropolitan Council directs the Metropolitan Planning Commission to approve such signs.
- 9. The requirements of the Metropolitan Fire Marshal's Office for emergency vehicle access and adequate water supply for fire protection must be met prior to the issuance of any building permits. If any cul-de-sac is required to be larger than the dimensions specified by the Metropolitan Subdivision Regulations, such cul-de-sac must include a landscaped median in the middle of the turn-around, including trees. The required turnaround may be up to 100 feet diameter."

9. 2005P-017G-06

Shoppes on the Harpeth, Lot 3 Map155-12, Parcel 287 Subarea 6 (2003) Council District **35** - Charlie Tygard

A request to revise the preliminary and for final approval for a portion of a Planned Unit Development located at 8100 Highway 100, approximately 460 feet east of Old Harding Pike (1.3 acres), zoned CL, to permit the development of 12,150 square feet comprised of 8,500 square feet of office and 3,650 square feet of retail uses, requested by Dale & Associates, applicant, for Harold Crye Trustee, owner. **STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve with condition.**

APPLICANT REQUEST - Revise Preliminary and Final

A request to revise the preliminary and for final approval for a portion of a Planned Unit Development located at 8100 Highway 100, approximately 460 feet east of Old Harding Pike (1.3 acres), zoned CL, to permit the development of 12,150 square feet comprised of 8,500 square feet of office and 3,650 square feet of retail use.

PLAN DETAILS

General - The plan calls for a 12,150 square foot building which will include 8,500 square feet of office use, and 3,650 square feet of retail use for Lot 3 of this PUD.

Parking - As proposed a total of 46 parking spaces are required. The plan shows 48 parking spaces and is in compliance with the parking requirements.

Access - This development will be accessed from Highway 100 by private drives. The main private drive, which provides direct access to Highway 100 for this and other lots in the PUD, was approved with Lots 4 and 5. A portion of the private drive north of Lot 3 was also approved with Lots 4 and 5 and will be completed with the construction of this Lot. Access into this Lot will be from three separate locations; two points will be at the north and one will be at the east.

Preliminary Plan - The PUD was originally approved in 2005 and revised in 2006. The last approved preliminary plan for Lot 3 called for a 5,000 square foot restaurant. While the current use and layout are different than what was last approved, the proposed use is allowed in the PUD and does not exceed the allotted area for office and retail.

Staff Recommendation - Since the proposed plan is in keeping with the intent of the original PUD concept and does not exceed the allotted area for office and retail uses allowed within the PUD, staff recommends that the request be approved with conditions.

PUBLIC WORKS RECOMMENDATION

- 1. All Public Works' design standards shall be met prior to permit issuance. Any approval is subject to Public Works' approval of the construction plans. Final design and improvements may vary based on field conditions.
- 2. The project roadway improvements shall be coordinated with roadway construction for the Temple Rd TDOT project and the Harpeth Village PUD development. Hwy 100 road improvements shall be approved by TDOT.
- 3. Developer shall construct a 3 lane cross section including center turn lane on Hwy 100. These improvements shall connect to the existing lanes at the Old Harding Pk intersection and proposed lanes for the TDOT/Temple Rd project and the Harpeth Village PUD.
- 4. In accordance with the TIS:
- a. Developer shall dedicate required ROW for the road improvements and reserve additional ROW in accordance with the major street plan Classification S4 for Hwy 100 and U4 for Old Harding Pk.
- b. Developer shall install an eastbound left turn lane with 100 ft of storage on Hwy 100 at access driveway.
- c. Developer shall construct a westbound right turn lane with 100 ft of storage on HWY 100 at access driveway. The transition length shall be per AASHTO standards.
- d. The transition on Hwy 100 at the adjacent Walgreens drive shall be modified to be in accordance with AASHTO standards.
- 5. Based on data included in the TIS:
- a. The access driveway at Hwy100 shall be aligned opposite the Church driveway. The access driveway shall be constructed with 2 southbound exit lanes with 80ft of storage and 1 northbound entering lane. The first internal driveways shall be a minimum of 50ft from the reserved HWY 100 ROW. The internal driveways shall be designed to function as right in and right out drives via the use of a median.
- b. Cross connection shall be constructed to the adjacent Walgreens and Harpeth Village PUD.
- c. Developer shall submit a signal coordination study in order to optimize traffic flow on Old Harding Rd and Hwy 100. This study will be required upon installation of signals at the adjacent Harpeth Village PUD development and completion of 50% of the Shoppes on the Harpeth development.

STORMWATER RECOMMENDATION - Approved

CONDITIONS

- 1. A sidewalk shall be provided and identified along the west side of the internal dive east of this lot.
- 2. All signs shall be monument type signs, not to exceed 5 ft. in height.
- 3. Prior to the issuance of any permits, confirmation of final approval of this proposal shall be forwarded to the Planning Commission by the Stormwater Management division of Water Services.
- 4. Prior to the issuance of any permits, confirmation of final approval of this proposal shall be forwarded to the Planning Commission by the Traffic Engineering Sections of the Metropolitan Department of Public Works for all improvements within public rights of way. This shall also include all applicable Public Works' conditions listed above.

- 5. The requirements of the Metropolitan Fire Marshal's Office for emergency vehicle access and adequate water supply for fire protection must be met prior to the issuance of any building permits. If any cul-de-sac is required to be larger than the dimensions specified by the Metropolitan Subdivision Regulations, such cul-de-sac must include a landscaped median in the middle of the turn-around, including trees. The required turnaround may be up to 100 feet diameter.
- 6. Authorization for the issuance of permit applications will not be forwarded to the Department of Codes Administration until four (4) additional copies of the approved plans have been submitted to the Metropolitan Planning Commission.
- 7. These plans as approved by the Planning Commission will be used by the Department of Codes Administration to determine compliance, both in the issuance of permits for construction and field inspection. Significant deviation from these plans will require reapproval by the Planning Commission.
- 8. If this final approval includes conditions which require correction/revision of the plans, authorization for the issuance of permit applications will not be forwarded to the Department of Codes Administration until four (4) copies of the corrected/revised plans have been submitted to and approved by staff of the Metropolitan Planning Commission for filing and recordation with the Davidson County Register of Deeds.

Approved with conditions, (7-0) Consent Agenda

Resolution No. BL2007-296

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission that 2005P-017G-06 is **APPROVED WITH CONDITIONS. (7-0)**

Conditions of Approval:

- 1. A sidewalk shall be provided and identified along the west side of the internal dive east of this lot.
- 2. All signs shall be monument type signs, not to exceed 5 ft. in height.
- 3. Prior to the issuance of any permits, confirmation of final approval of this proposal shall be forwarded to the Planning Commission by the Stormwater Management division of Water Services.
- 4. Prior to the issuance of any permits, confirmation of final approval of this proposal shall be forwarded to the Planning Commission by the Traffic Engineering Sections of the Metropolitan Department of Public Works for all improvements within public rights of way. This shall also include all applicable Public Works' conditions listed above.
- 5. The requirements of the Metropolitan Fire Marshal's Office for emergency vehicle access and adequate water supply for fire protection must be met prior to the issuance of any building permits. If any cul-de-sac is required to be larger than the dimensions specified by the Metropolitan Subdivision Regulations, such cul-de-sac must include a landscaped median in the middle of the turn-around, including trees. The required turnaround may be up to 100 feet diameter.
- 6. Authorization for the issuance of permit applications will not be forwarded to the Department of Codes Administration until four (4) additional copies of the approved plans have been submitted to the Metropolitan Planning Commission.
- 7. These plans as approved by the Planning Commission will be used by the Department of Codes Administration to determine compliance, both in the issuance of permits for construction and field inspection. Significant deviation from these plans will require reapproval by the Planning Commission.
- 8. If this final approval includes conditions which require correction/revision of the plans, authorization for the issuance of permit applications will not be forwarded to the Department of Codes Administration until four (4) copies of the corrected/revised plans have been submitted to and approved by staff of the Metropolitan Planning Commission for filing and recordation with the Davidson County Register of Deeds."

10. 2005UD-003G-12

Carothers Crossing, Delegation of Architectural Review Map 188-00 Parcel Subarea 12 - (2004) Council District 31 - Parker Toler

A request to delegate the responsibility for architectural design review within the Urban Design Overlay district to the Carothers Crossing Town Architect and Design Review Committee, located at Kidd Road (unnumbered) Battle Road (unnumbered), 7140, 7176, 7107, 7211, and 7244 Carothers Road, and Carothers Road (unnumbered), (599 acres total), for the review of a maximum of 3,000 residential units and 200,000 square feet of commercial space, requested by Planning Staff and Wood Ridge Investments, LLC, applicant/owner. **STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve.**

APPLICANT REQUEST -A request to delegate the responsibility for architectural design review within the Urban Design Overlay district to the Carothers Crossing Town Architect and Design Review Committee, located at Kidd Road (unnumbered) Battle Road (unnumbered), 7140, 7176, 7107, 7211, and 7244 Carothers Road, and Carothers Road (unnumbered), (599 acres), for the review of a maximum of 3,000 residential units and 200,000 square feet of commercial space.

REQUEST DETAILS - The Carothers Crossing Urban Design Overlay document states that its purpose is to clearly articulate a desired form of neighborhood development, consistent with the principles and techniques of New Urbanist Best Practices. The document is extremely thorough to that end, and even goes beyond establishing standards necessary for governmental regulatory review and approval to insure the desired form of development.

The developer has hired Third Coast Design Studio to fill the position of Town Architect for Carothers Crossing to oversee the implementation of the development and to review all proposals for compliance with the design intent of the adopted UDO. They have also established a Design Review Committee and process, led by the Town Architect, in order to assure compliance with the overall intent of the UDO and particularly to assure compliance with the architectural and landscape standards of the development.

The proposed process incorporates Metro Planning Staff into the design review process for all standards related to achieving the overall form of the traditional neighborhood development, while allowing the Town Architect and DRC to implement the architectural and landscape design intent. This should help streamline the process, preventing multiple reviews of the same information.

Internal Design Review Process - The following is the Carothers Crossing Design Review Process:

Step 1 (Optional, but strongly encouraged) - <u>Plan Book Review</u>: the review and approval of designs for inclusion in the Carothers Crossing Plan Book. This is the most cost effective opportunity for Applicants to submit proposed designs and determine if they meet the design intent of Carothers Crossing because only floor plans and elevations are required at this point.

Step 2 (**Required for applicants with multiple lots adjacent or across**) - <u>Contextual Review</u>: an informal work session with Applicant and the Design Review Committee (DRC) to determine the most appropriate plans for specific lots. This review may involve several builders if required by the DRC.

Step 3 (Optional, but strongly encouraged) - <u>Preliminary Design Review</u>: the review and approval of site specific preliminary designs. Preliminary Design approval satisfies the requirements for inclusion in the Carothers Crossing Plan Book. This is the second most cost effective opportunity for Applicants to submit proposed designs and determine if they meet the design intent of Carothers Crossing. Preliminary Design Review submittals require greater detail because they are site specific.

Step 4 (Required) - <u>Construction Document Review</u>: the review and approval of site specific final designs that include full construction documents.

Step 5 (Required) - <u>Metro Planning Staff Review</u>: The Town Architect will coordinate submittal to the Planning Commission.

Procedure for Metro Planning Commission Approval - As stated previously, the Carothers Crossing UDO document provides standards above and beyond what is required by Section 17.40.130 of the Zoning Ordinance pertaining to Urban Design Overlays, and since the developer has established an extensive design review process for the development in order to implement the additional standards, they have proposed the procedure below for development within Carothers Crossing to be approved by the Metropolitan Planning Commission.

Step 1 -<u>Carothers Crossing Design Review</u>: completion of Steps 1 through 4 of the Carothers Crossing Design Review Process outlined above. The Town Architect and DRC shall make certain that applications meet or exceed the design intent of the established Landscape and Architectural Standards utilizing the written standards as well as the illustrations and photographs throughout the UDO document. The Town Architect shall provide a DRC agenda to the Manager of the Urban Design Studio the day prior to a scheduled DRC meeting.

Step 2 - <u>Metro Planning Staff Review</u>: the review and approval of site specific final designs by the staff of the Metro Planning Commission. Metro Planning Staff shall review all applications for compliance with the Carothers Crossing UDO Urban Code in order to insure that the ultimate form of development is consistent with the adopted urban design standards.

Step 3 - <u>Quarterly Review</u>: periodic meetings between the Town Architect and Metro Planning Staff to discuss and refine the Carothers Crossing review process. The Town Architect shall meet quarterly with Metro Planning Staff to address any potential concerns the staff might have with the review process. Dates and times shall be determined by the Manager of the Urban Design Studio and the Town Architect.

Staff Recommendation - Staff recommends approval of the proposed process with two conditions:

1) The Town Architect shall review plans and make a recommendation of their findings to Planning Staff. Planning Staff shall then approve the Town Architect's recommendation if found to be in substantial compliance with the UDO.

2) The proposed agreement shall apply to the current developer, Wood Ridge Development, LLC, and the current Town Architect, Third Coast Design Studio. If either party changes, then a new agreement will be necessary.

With these conditions, the proposed process allows the Carothers Crossing Town Architect and Design Review Committee to be primarily responsible for ensuring that all applications meet or exceed the design intent of the established Landscape and Architectural Standards. Metro Planning Staff will still be responsible for all approvals of building permit applications and for reviewing applications for compliance with the Urban Code (building placement and height, building frontage and parking/access) in order to insure that the ultimate form of development is consistent with the adopted urban design standards.

The Town Architect will meet quarterly with Metro Planning Staff to address any potential concerns the staff might have with the review process.

PUBLIC WORKSRECOMMENDATION - N/A

STORMWATER RECOMMENDATION - N/A

CONDITIONS

1) The Town Architect shall review plans and make a recommendation of their findings to Planning Staff. Planning Staff shall then approve the Town Architect's recommendation if found to be in substantial compliance with the UDO.

2) The proposed agreement shall apply to the current developer, Wood Ridge Development, LLC, and the current Town Architect, Third Coast Design Studio. If either party changes, then a new agreement will be necessary.

Approved, (7-0) Consent Agenda

Resolution No. BL2007-297

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission that 2005UD-003G-12 is **APPROVED WITH CONDITIONS. (7-0)**

Conditions of Approval:

- 1. The Town Architect shall review plans and make a recommendation of their findings to Planning Staff. Planning Staff shall then approve the Town Architect's recommendation if found to be in substantial compliance with the UDO.
- 2. The proposed agreement shall apply to the current developer, Wood Ridge Development, LLC, and the current Town Architect, Third Coast Design Studio. If either party changes, then a new agreement will be necessary."

XI. OTHER BUSINESS

2005S-051G-06 – Avondale Subdivision Request for an extension of approval for an expired preliminary plat.

Approved, (7-0) Consent Agenda

12. Acquisition of Digital Orthoimagery for mapping purposes in Davidson County.

Approved, (7-0) Consent Agenda

13. Executive Director Reports

14. Legislative Update

XIII. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 4:40 p.m.

Chairman

Secretary

The Planning Department does not discriminate on the basis of age, race, sex, color, national origin, religion or disability in access to, or operation of its programs, services, activities or in its hiring or employment practices. **ADA inquiries should be forwarded to:** Josie L. Bass, Planning Department ADA Compliance Coordinator, 800 Second Avenue South, 2nd. Floor, Nashville, TN 37201, (615)862-7150. **Title VI inquiries should be forwarded to:** Michelle Lane, Metro Title VI Coordinator, 222 Third Avenue North, Suite 200, Nashville, TN 37201, (615)862-6170. **Contact Department of Human Resources for all employment related inquiries** at (615)862-6640.